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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of VLCC Health Care Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of VLCC Health Care
Limited ("hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company"), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company
and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™), comprising of the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other
comprehensive loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the
other financial information of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner so

_ required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted

in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2019, their consolidated
loss including other comprehensive loss, their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated ind AS Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated ind AS
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and audit evidence obtained by other auditors in terms
of their report referred to in Other Matter section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Companies Director's Report, but does not
include the consolidated Ind AS financia! statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
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that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these consolidated Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including
other comprehensive loss income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
[the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended . The respective Board of
Directors of the companies included.in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

in preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
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and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

»  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an
opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the
other entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which have been audited
by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and such other entities included
in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of 27
subsidiaries, and 1 Trust, whose Ind AS financial statements include total assets of Rs 24,120 lakhs
and total revenues of Rs 29,956 lakhs before intercompany eliminations and net cash outflows of Rs
26 lakhs for the year ended on that date. These Ind AS financial statement and other financial
information have been audited by other auditors, which financial statements, other financial
information and auditor's reports have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiaries and Trust, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of
Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and Trust, is based solely
on the report(s) of such other auditors. -

Certain of these subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial statements and other financial
information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their
respective countries and which have been audited by other auditors under generally accepted
auditing standards applicable in their respective countries. The Company’'s management has
converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries located outside India from accounting
principles generally accepted in their respective countries to accounting principles generally
accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments made by the Company's
management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries located
outside India is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by
the management of the Company and audited by us.

Our opinion above on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to
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our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and
other financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report
of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of
subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

€))

(b)

©

@

e

)

@

(h)

We/The other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from
our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors ;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company, and the reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under section139 of

_the Act, of its subsidiary companies, none of the directors of the Group's companies

incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 1" to this report;

In our opinion, and based on the consideration of the reports of the other statutory auditors
of the subsidiaries, managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been
paid / provided by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in india
to their directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to
the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the
other financial information of the subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other matter’ paragraph:
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i.  The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations
on its consolidated financial position of the Group in its consolidated ind AS financial
statements - Refer Note 27(i) to the consolidated ind AS financial statements;

ii.  The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended March 31, 2019;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated
in India during the year ended March 31, 2019.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

-

per Yc&der Seth

Partner

Membership Number: 94524
UDIN: 19094524AAAABG4976

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 16, 2019
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF VLCC HEALTH CARE LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of thé
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of VLCC Health Care
Limited as of and for the year ended March 31, 2019, we have audited the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of VLCC Health Care Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding
Company™) and its subsidiary companies, which is incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which
are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, both, issued by
institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to the consolidated ind AS financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their report referred to the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated
Ind AS financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
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reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financia! statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated
in India, have, maintained in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financials statements and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matter

Our report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financia! controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated ind AS
financial statements of the Holding Company, in so far as it relates to subsidiary companies, which
are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such
companies incorporated in India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

WAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

UDIN: 1909%524AAAABG4976

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 16, 2019



VLCC Health Care Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March'31, 2019
CIN No-174899DL1996PLC082842

(Ail amounts in INR Lakhs unless stherwise stated

As st Asat Asat
Notes March 31,2019 March 31,2018 March 35,2017
ote 2.4 ote 2.4)
ASSETS ® L o
Non-current nssets
Property, plant and equiptnent 4 28,785 30,489 31,033
Capital work in progress 4 - 154 538
Intangible assets 5 499 634 557
Intangible assets under development 5 5 - -
Goodwill 6 1,965 1,947 1.821
Financial assets
- Investments * ) 1] 0 ¢
» Loans 7(b) 854 858 1,224
- Otber bank balances He) 99 154 85
- Others () 1 2 8
Deferred tax assets (net) 15 4,562 4,718 4,498
Cther nion- current assets 9 357 638 360
Total Noo-current assels 37,207 39,594 40,323
Current agsels
Inventonies 3 6,602 6,504 6,143
Financial assets
- Loans (b) 1,031 1,335 1,099
- Trade recervables e) 5,074 7,068 6,362
- Cash and cash equivaients 7(dy 4,227 3,681 4,840
- Other bank balances 7(e) 7} g 128
- Others m 52 48 35
Carrent tax assets (net) 15 530 629 491
Other cuirent assets 9 2483 3,546 1892
Total Current assets 20,069 22,850 20,992
Total Asseis £7.276 62,444 61,318
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 10 3,767 3,767 3,767
Other equity:
Share premiwn 6,430 6,430 6,430
(eneral reserve 327 327 327
Legal reserve 58 58 6
Retained eamings (2,408) 1,822 6,450
Forelyn exchangs wanslation reserve 656 605 548
Treasury shares (33 [£X}) {33)
Reserve on transaciions with NCI (74) {30} -
Equity nttributable to equity holders of the parent 8,723 12,546 17,565
Non-controlling, interesis {400} (81) 212
Total Equity 8323 12,8565 171,777
LIABILITIFS
Non- current labilities
Finangia? Habilities:
- Borrowings 1{a) 6,822 8,751 10,623
- Other tinancial liabilitics 1) 197 121 102
Provisions 12 1,089 917 822
Contract habilities 13 826 444 169
Other non current liabilities 14 73 172 179
Todal aun- current Tixhilities 9,107 10,405 11,895
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 11{a} 5,582 5,580 3,072
- Trade payablas
- Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and Smell enterprises 26 195 8 -
- Total outstanding dues uf creditors other than Micro enterprises and Smalt
eltarprises 11(b) 20,470 19,531 13,799
- Other financia! Liabilities 11(c) 4,037 5,421 5,131
Provisions 12 157 569 448
Cor:ract liabilities 13 7311 7,189 7.561
Other Current liabitities 14 1,454 326 §32
Total current liabilities 39,846 39,174 31,643
Totul Liabilities 48,953 49,579 43,538
Total Equity and Liabilities 57,216 62,444 61,315
0 cgpresents amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Group.
Summary of significant accounting poticies 2.1

The aceompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
As per onr repoit of even date

For 8.R. Badiboi & Associares LLFP

Chartered Accountams
1CAl Firm R cation Number: 10104 3W/E300004

Membershiy No. : 94524

Piace: Gurgaon
Daie: 16th September, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of VLCC Health Care Limited

Jaynut Khosla
Managing Director
DIN No. 08321843

/

Navinder Kumary

Group Chief Finangial Officer and Company Secretary

DIN Ne. 00043118




VLCC Health Care Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for year ended March 31, 2012
CIN No,-U74899DL1996PLC082842

(Al amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise siated)

For the year ended  For the year ended
Notes March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
. (Note 2.4)
Income
Revenue from contracts with customers 16 85,244 83,489
Other income 17 76 64
Total income (A) 85,320 83,553
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 19 12,683 12,268
Purchase of stock-in-trade 1,890 940
{Increase)! Decrease in inventoriea of stock-in-trade 20 (140) 132
Employee benefits expense 21 30,751 27,516
Other expenses 24 34,828 38,652
Total expenses before interest, depreciation, amortisation {B) 80,012 79,508
and tax
Earnings hefore interest, tax, depreciation and (C)=(A-B) 5,308 4,045
amortisation (EBITDA)
Finance incoms (D) 18 172 110
Finance costs (E) 22 2,916 2,956
Depreciation and amortization expense (F) 23 6,279 6,039
Profit /{Loss) hefore tax and exceptional items (G)={C+D-E-F) (3,715) (4,880)
Exceptiona! items (H) 24(a) 331 71
Profit /{Loss) before tax and after exceptional (I=(G-H) (4,096) (4,951
Tax exnense:
Current tax 174 69
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years (5 12
Deferred tax charge/(credit) 155 219
Total tax expense [8)] 324 (138
Profit {(Loss) for the year (K)=(1-)) (4,420) (4.813)
Non-¢ontrolling interests L) (401) {404)
Prafit /(Loss) for the year attributable to the shareholders (M)=(K-L} 4,019 {4,409)
of the Company
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequeant periods:
- Re-measurement logses on defined benefit plans 1211y {220}
- Income tax credit 0 1
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
- Exchange differences on trunsalation of foreign operations 71 47
Other comprehensive profit /(loss} for the year, net of tax (140 172y
Total comprehensive profit /{loss) of the year, aet of tax (4,159) (4,581)
Profit /{Loss) for the year (4,420) (4,813)
Attributable to :
Equity holders of parent (4,019) (4,409)
Non- controlling interests (401) (404)
Total comprehensive profit /(loss) of the year, net of tax (4,159) (4,581)
Attributable to :
Equity holders of parent {3,758) @.177)
Noo- conirolling interests (4013 {404)
Earnings/(loss) per share: 25
Basic and diluted in INR {173} {1278}
Summary of significant accounting pelicies 21

The accompartying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per aur report of even date
For 8.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountuitts of VL.CC Health Care Limited

ICAI Firm Registration Number:101049W/E300004

Jayant Khosla
Managing Director
DIN No. 08321343
Memberthip No. : 94524

/

Place: Wn Narinder Kumarj”/

Date: 16th September, 2019 Group Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sazsgp Akijn

Director
DIN No. 00043118




VLCC Health Care Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31,2019
CIN No.-U74899DL1926P1.C082842

(Al amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2012 March 31,2018
{(Note 2.4)
Cash flow from operating activities;
Profit /(Loss) before tax and after exceptional items {4,096) (4,951)
Adiustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation 6,279 6,039
Allowance for doubtful trade receivables (481) 316
Allowance for doubtful advances 14 31
Provision for inventories 12 224
Provision for decommissioning liabilities 7 é
Provision for lease equalisation - {an
Inventory written offadjustments 327 415
Loss on sale of investment of subsidiary - 7
Disposal of substantial assets of subsidiary 381 -
Profit on sale of mutual funds/invesunent - )
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 8 39
Finance costs 2916 2,996
Finance income (172) {174
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss 2 2
9,203 9,944
Operating profit before working capital changes 5,197 4,993
Movements in working capital:
(Decrease)increase in trade payables and other financial liabilities 547 6,059
(Decrease)increase in other liabilitics 1,173 (310
(Decrease)increase in provisions 99 254
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivable and other financiat assets 2.882 (L480)
Decrease/{increase) in inventories (336) (988)
Decrease/(increase) in other assets 1,173 (1,786)
5,538 1,749
Cash generated from operations 10,735 6,741
Direct taxes paid {net of refunds) (71) (218)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 10,664 6,523
Cash flow from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 164 168
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (4,354) (5,382)
Proceeds from sale of intererst in subsidiary - 248
Sale of mutuat funds - 207
Purchase of mutual finds - (203)
Interest received 173 180
Proceeds from maturity of bank deposits with original maturity of more than three month; 62 62
Investment in bank deposits with original maturity of more than three months (38) {41
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (3.993) (4,762)




VLCC Health Care Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2012 (Cont'd)

CIN No,-U74899DL1996PLC082842

(Al amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{Note 2.4)

Net cash flow from financing activities:

Proceeds from borrowings 1,367 2,155
Repayments of borrowings {4,588) {4,592)
Increase/(decrease) in cash credits (net) 2 2,508
Interest paid (2,907) (2,991)
Net cash generated/(used) from financing activities (C) (6,125) (2,920)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B +C) 546 (1,189)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3,681 4,840
Effect of exchange differences on restatement of foreign currency cash and cash equival ()] {0
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4,227 3,681

Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2.1)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of VLCC Health Care Limited

ICAI Firm Registration Number:101049W/E300004
MD,

Jayant Khosla Sandee) huja
Managing Director Director
DIN No. 08321843 DIN No. 00043118

Narinder Kamar
Group Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

Place: Gurgaon Place: Gurgaon
Date: 16th September, 2019 Date: 16th September, 2019




VLCC Health Care Limited
Statement of Changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2019
CIN No.-UT4899DL1996PLC082842

(Al in INR Lakhs unless othenwise stated)
a. Equity Share Capital (Refer note 10) Numberof  Amount
shaves (in
\|
As at April 1, 2017 377 3,767
Add ; Jssye of eguity share capital - -
As at March 31, 2018 ] 377 3,767
As at Aprit 1, 2018 n 3,767
Add : Issue of equity share capital - .
As at March 31, 2019 _ 377 3,767
b, Other Equi
Attributable fo the equity holders of the Holding Company
Reserves aod Surplus {ther Reserve Noo
Particutars Security | General | Lepal i Retained | Foreign |Treasury Ruerve. on Conirolling Total
premium j reserve | Reserve | earnings [ Currency | Shares | transactions Tutal Interests
translation with NC1 (NCD*
e
At April 1, 2017 (Reported) 6,430 327 76 7429 548 (33) - 14,776 212 14,988
Effect of adoption of IND AS 115 ( Refer Note 2.4) - - - (979) - - - (579) - (979)
At April 1, 2017 {Restated) 6,430 327 76 6,450 348 {33) - 13,798 212 14,010
Pr?]ﬁt.’(Loss) for the year - - (4,409) . (4,409) @)y  (4813)
Other comprehensive income/(oss) for the
year, net of tax {219) 57 (162) (10} {172)
Transfer to Retained eamnings on disposal of subisidiary (18) {a8) as)
Add: NCT on business combination during the year (30) 30 99 65
Financial liability for future acquistion - 22 22
At March 31, 2018 6,430 327 55 1,822 605 {33) (36 9179 (81} 9,099
Profit/(Loss) for the year {4,019) (4,019} (401) (4,420}
Add: NCI on business combination during the (44} (44} 63 19
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the @1 51 (160) 19 (1413
vear, net of tax
At March 31, 2019 6,430 317 38 (2,408) 656 (33) (T4} 4,956 (400) 4,557
Notes:

Security premium; Represents the premium received upon issues of shares in earlier years and can be utilized &s per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.
General reserve: The amount in general reserve has been recorded as per Companies {Transfer of Profits to Reserves) Rules, 1975 on declaration of dividend in carlier years.
Treasury Shaves: represent the value of shares held by VLCC Employee welfare Trust (ESOP Trust) on behalf of the emplayees.
Legal Reserve: The legal reserve is created as per Memorandum of Association of the various foreign apearions, It is not available for distribution unless provided in the

local laws governing the foreign operations.
Financial liability for fature acquistion:

The Company acquired controlling stake of 76% of the sharcholdings of Wyann Intemational SDN BHD, Malysia ("Wyann") and 85% of the shareholdings of Giobal
Vantage Ennovative Group Pte Lid, Singapere ("Gvig") before the transition date i.e. Apni 1, 2015. The acquisitions were executed through share purchase agreements signed
between the Company and the shareholders of respective companies. The share purchase agreement gives the right to the Company 1o purchase the remainng sharehalding

from the selling shareholders {"call aption™) as well gives the selling sharcholders a right to make the Company purchase the remaining sharcholding from them ("put

aption™), as per the terms of the sharcholding ngreement. As per Ind AS 109, the call and put options need to be recognised and measured af fair value at each reperting date.
The fair value of put liability hes been disclosed as “financial liability for future acquisition” under financial labilities. This financial liability has been measured at INR 21

TLakhs as at 31 March 2017 which has been expired during the previous year.
* Non-controlling interest is including the preference shares issued to minority shareholders.

Summary of significant accounting policies {refer note 2.1)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
1CA]T Firm R ation Number: 101049W/E300004

a2,

r Seth Jayant Khosla
Managing Director
i No. : 94524 DIN No. 08321843

Place: Gurgacn
Daie: 16th September, 2019

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 16th September, 2019

r

Narinder Kumny-/

Group Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

For and on hehaif of the Board of Trectors
of VLCC Health Care Limited

Sandeep &ﬁ uja

Director

DIN No. 00043118
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

1. Corporate information

VLCC Health Care Limited (the “Company” or the “Parent”) is an unlisted public limited company
domiciled in India and was incorporated in India on October 23, 1996 under the provisions of the
Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is located at M-14, Greater
Kailash-II, Commercial Complex, New Delhi.

The Company together with its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) has presence in India, Middle East,
Asia and Africa.

The Group is principally engaged in the business of maintaining and running beauty, slimming, fitness and
health centres at various locations, sale of beauty products and also provide vocational training in beauty
and nutrition. Details of the Group structure and services provided by the Group are detailed in Note 38.

The Consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by
Board of Directors on September 16, 2019.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The Group has voluntarily adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013 read together with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 during the
year ended March 31, 2017 with transition date being April 1, 2015.

These Consolidated financial statements comply with all material aspects with Ind AS notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and the relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the accrual and going concern basis, and the
historical cost convention, except for certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value as
specifically required by Ind AS. (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

Measurement of EBITDA

The Group presents Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA) in the
statement of profit and loss, this is not specifically required by Ind AS 1. The term EBITDA is not defined
in Ind AS. Ind AS compliant Schedule III allows companies to present line items, sub —line items and sub-
totals shall be presented as an addition or substitution on the face of the financial statements when such
presentation is relevant to an understanding of the Group’s financial position or performance or to cater to
industry /sector- specific disclosure requirements or when required for compliance with the amendments to
the Companies Act or under the Indian Accounting Standards.

Accordingly, the Group has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the Statement of Profit and Loss. In its measurement, the
Group does not include depreciation and amortization expense, finance costs, finance income and tax

expense.
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Rounding of amounts
The consolidated financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs,
except when otherwise indicated as per the requirement of Schedule III.

2.2 Basis of consolidation

Consolidation of Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at March 31, 2019. The Group Controls an investee or an entity when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee existing rights that give it the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this

presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the

Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,

including:

e The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

e Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

e The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

o The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the
other voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group
gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Non-controlling interests (NCI) is the equity in the subsidiary not attributable to a Parent and presented
separately from the Group’s equity. Non-controlling interest consists of the amount at the date of business
combination and its share of the changes in equity since that date.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting
date as that of the Company, i.e., year ended on March 31.

Consolidation procedure:

¢ Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the Parent with
those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the
amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the
acquisition date.

e Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the Parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the Parent’s
portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any
related goodwill.

e Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that
are recognised in assets, such as inventory are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an
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impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS12 Income Taxes
applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from
intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders
of the Parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses
accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that group member’s financial
statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the group’s
accounting policies. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

Reclassifies the Parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained
earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities

Refer Note 38 for details about the Company’s subsidiaries.

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
Significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.

Business combinations and goodwill

Ind AS 101 provides the option to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively from the transition date or from a specific
date prior to the transition date. This provides relief from full retrospective application that would require
restatement of all business combinations prior to the transition date.

The Group has elected to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively to business combinations occurring after its
transition date. Business combinations occurring prior to the transition date have not been restated.
Business combinations after the transition date are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of
an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date
fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities
representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact
that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and
liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:
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e Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS
19 Employee Benefits respectively.

e Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share — based payments arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments
at the acquisition date.

e Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

e Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual
term of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal of the reacquired

right.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host

contracts by the acquire

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCl, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the
scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-
measured at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess
of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of
the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the
amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair
value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI
and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase,
the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:

e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
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Held primarily for the purpose of trading
e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current
A liability is current when:
It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period
The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Based on the nature of products / activities of the Group and the normal time between acquisition of assets
and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Group has determined its operating cycle as 12 months
for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Foreign currencies

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Group’s functional
currency. For each entity the Group determines the functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. The Group uses the direct method of
consolidation and on disposal of a foreign operation the gain or loss that is reclassified to profit or loss
reflects the amount that arises from using this method. .

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at its respective functional currency
spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the group
uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Measurement of foreign currency monetary items at the Balance Sheet date
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Treatment of exchange differences .

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss

with the exception of the following:

¢ Exchange differences arising on monetary items that forms part of a reporting entity’s net investment
in a foreign operation are recognised in profit or loss in the separate financial statements of the reporting
entity or the individual financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate. In the financial
statements that include the foreign operation and the reporting entity (e-g., consolidated financial
statements when the foreign operation is a subsidiary), such exchange differences are recognised
initially in OCL These exchange differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of
the net investment.

Measurement of foreign currency non-monetary items at the Balance Sheet date
¢ Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
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e Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments at fair value which required to be measured at fair value, at each
balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable
e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reporting period.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from services

Ind AS 115 was issued on 28th March 2018 and supersedes Ind AS 18 Revenue and it applies, with limited
exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with its customers effective April 1, 2018. The Group
adopted Ind AS 115 using the full retrospective method of adoption and comparative information has also

been restated to be reported under Ind AS 115.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration which the Group expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.
Revenue is measured based n the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts,
credits, price concessions and other incentives and discounts. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from
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the customers.
Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition

« The Group’s contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple products and services
to a customer over a period of time. The Group assesses the products/services promised in a contract and
identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation
involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently
from such deliverables.

+ Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could
be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements such as
discounts, price concessions, etc. Any consideration payable to the customer is adjusted to the transaction
price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the customer. The estimated amount of
variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the
end of each reporting period. The Group allocates the elements of variable considerations to all the
performance obligations of the contract unless there is observable evidence that they pertain to one or more
distinct performance obligations.

« The Group uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance
obligation. The Group allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation on the basis of the
relative standalone selling price of each distinct product or service promised in the contract.

« The Group exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point
in time or over a period of time. The Group considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits
as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to
payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks
and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc.

Revenue from regular beauty sales are recognised as services are provided to the customers.

Revenue in respect of tuition fees received from students for courses run by the Company and also those
launched under various schemes by the Government of India is recognised over the period of the course as
the Company believes that the obligation is towards the full course rather than a particular session. Fees are
recorded at invoice value, net of discounts, rebate, incentives if any.

Revenue in respect of non-refundable lump sum fees received from the franchisee’s or infrastructure
provider is recognised over the period of the contract.

Revenue in respect of royalty received from the franchisees is recognised on accrual basis at the end of each
month in terms of the agreement.

Revenue from products

Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the Group transfers the control of goods to the customer
as per the terms of contract, generally on delivery of the products. The Group considers whether there are
other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction
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price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price, the Group considers the effects of variable
consideration, non-cash considerations and consideration payable to the customer (if any). The Group
believes that the control gets transferred to the customer on delivery of the goods to the customers.

Rights of return

Certain contracts provide a customer with a right to return the damaged goods within a specified period.
The Group uses the expected value method to estimate the goods that will not be returned because this
method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled. The
requirements in Ind AS 115 on constraining estimates of variable consideration are also applied in order to
determine the amount of variable consideration that can be included in the transaction price. For goods that
are expected to be returned, the Group recognises a refund liability. A right of return asset (included in
inventory) is also recognised for the right to recover products from a customer.

Non-cash consideration

The Group receives advertising services in return of sale of products to select customers. The fair value of
such non-cash consideration received from the customer is included in the transaction price when goods
are delivered to the customer. The Group applies the requirements of Ind AS 113 Fair Value Measurement
in measuring the fair value of the non- cash consideration. If the fair value cannot be reasonably estimated,
the non-cash consideration is measured indirectly by reference to the stand-alone selling price of the goods
sold.

Yariable consideration:

Volume rebates

Variable consideration in the form of volume rebates is recognised at the time of sale made to the customers
and are offset against the amounts receivable from them. To estimate the variable consideration for the
expected future rebates, the Group applies the expected value method. The selected method that best
predicts the amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds
contained in the contract. The Group then applies the requirements on constraining estimates of variable
consideration and recognises a liability for the expected future rebates.

Display charges

The Group commonly pays retailers, charges to have their goods displayed prominently on shelves. As
these charges do not provide a good or service distinct from sale of products by the Group , this is treated

as a reduction to the transaction price.

Contract Balances -

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold in the ordinary course of business. They
are generally due for settlement within one year and therefore are all classified as current. Where the
settlement is due after one year, they are classified as non-current. Trade receivables are recognised initially
at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect
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the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

Unearned and deferred revenue (‘contract liability’) is recognised when there are billings in excess of
revenues.

Interest income
Income from interest on time deposits is recognised on the time proportion method taking into consideration
the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rates using the effective interest rate (EIR).

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate,
the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the
expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends
Revenue is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally
when shareholders approve the dividend.

Government Grants

Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts
over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value
amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit
of the underlying asset i.e. by equal annual instalments. When loans or similar assistance are provided by
governments or related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect
of this favourable interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised
and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference between the initial
carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the
accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.

Taxes
Income taxes consist of current taxes and changes in deferred tax liabilities and assets.

Current income tax
Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance
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with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates
taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets

and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

o Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax

credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that

taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except:

e  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

o In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.
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Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) provisions are applicable to the Group. Credit of MAT is recognised as
deferred tax asset only when it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which credit can be
utilised. In the year in which MAT becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created
by way of a credit to the statement of profit and loss. The Group reviews the same at each balance sheet
date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit entitlement to the extent it is no longer probable
that the Group will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses if any. Cost directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property, plant and equipment
are ready for use, as intended by the management.

Capital work in progress, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and
equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. The
cost of property, plant and equipment includes interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of
qualifying assets up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use and other incidental expenses incurred
up to that date.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the
cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. Refer to note 3 and 12 regarding
significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions and provisions for further information about
the recorded decommissioning provision.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work in progress
Projects under which assets are not ready for their intended use and other capital work-in-progress are
carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

Depreciation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated
residual value.

Depreciation on all Property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight line method over the estimated
useful life of the assets at rates specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, for the Companies
incorporated in India. Freehold Land is not depreciated as it has unlimited useful life. The overall range of
useful life for the Group is as follows:

Particulars : Useful life (Years)
Building 30 Years
Plant and equipment 10-15 years
Furniture and fixtures 7 -10 years
Vehicles 4 -8 years
Office equipment 5-10 years
Computers :

e Servers 6 years

e Desktops/ laptops 3 -4 years
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- Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of lease, including the optional period of lease or
9 years whichever is lower.

- All assets costing Rs.5,000 or below are depreciated in full on pro-rata basis from the date of their
acquisition.

Depreciation on addition to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the
assets are acquired/installed. Depreciation on sale/deduction from property, plant and equipment is
provided for upto the date of sale, deduction, discardment as the case may be.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. The cost of
an intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including any import duties and other taxes (other than
those subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities), and any directly attributable expenditure on
making the asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates.

Subsequent expenditure on an intangible asset after its purchase / completion is recognised as an expense
when incurred unless it is probable that such expenditure will enable the asset to generate future economic
benefits in excess of its originally assessed standards of performance and such expenditure can be measured
and attributed to the asset reliably, in which case such expenditure is added to the cost of the asset.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for
impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite
life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the

change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life as follows:

Useful life (Years)
Particulars
Computer software 6 years
Mobile applications 3 years
Trademarks 10 years

The estimated useful life of the intangible assets and the amortization period are reviewed at the end of each
financial year and the amortization method is revised to reflect the changed pattern.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of intangible assets are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are
capitalised as part of cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active development activity
on the qualifying assets is interrupted. In accordance with an opinion received from the expert advisory
committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the Group has during the year capitalized
borrowing costs in respect of construction of qualifying assets completed within a period of five to seven
months.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Group as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease where risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor is classified as operating lease.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group has ascertained that the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected
general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases and therefore are not
straight-lined. Hence, the lease payments are recognised on an accrual basis as per terms of the lease
agreement.

Contingent rental are recognised as rental expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

Inventories

Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. However,
materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if
the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost of
raw materials, components and stores and spares is determined on a First in First Out (FIFO) basis. Stores
and spares which do not meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are accounted as inventories.

Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes
direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating
capacity. Cost of finished goods includes excise duty. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis.

Cost includes all expenses incurred in bringing the goods to their present location and condition including
octroi and other levies, transit insurance and receiving charges. Work in Progress and finished goods include
appropriate proportion of overheads wherever applicable. Goods in transit are valued at cost excluding

import duties.

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a
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weighted average basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

m) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount based on estimates of future cash flows arising from continuing use of such
assets and from its ultimate disposal. A provision for impairment loss is recognised where it is probable
that the carrying value of an asset exceeds the amount to be recovered through use or sale of the asset.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into
account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations
are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other
available fair value indicators.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is
an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or cash generating unit (CGU’s) recoverable amount. A
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used
to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is

limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the

carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at March 31 and when circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or Group of
CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in
future periods.

Provisions and Contingent liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Decommissioning liability
The Group records a provision for decommissioning costs of a leased facility. Decommissioning costs are
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provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and are
recognised as part of the cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate
that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed
as incurred and recognised in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated future costs
of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future
costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.

Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group
or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a
liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions to the
provident fund are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year when an employee renders the
related service. The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.
The Group operates a funded defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. Benefits payable to eligible
employees of the Group with respect to gratuity, a defined benefit plan is accounted for on the basis of an
actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date. In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the
plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on
termination of employment in an amount equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of
service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The present value of such obligation is
determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted for past service cost and fair value of plan
assets as at the balance sheet date through which the obligations are to be settled. The expected return on
plan assets is based on the assumed rate of return of such assets.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Accumulated leave is treated as short-term employee benefit as the Group has no unconditional right to
defer the liability. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss.

Employee Share-based payments

The Group has formulated employee Stock Option Plan as approved & modified by Compensation
Committee / Board of Directors of the Group from time to time. The Plan provides for grant of Stock
Options to eligible employees of the Group and its subsidiaries to acquire equity shares of the Group that
vest in a graded manner and that are to be exercised within a specified period.

The options are to be converted into one share at a predetermined price to be exercised in accordance with
the plan.

The exercise price of the options shall be fair market value on the date of grant per option. That cost is
recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over
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the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period
represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and
is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or
service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense
had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction,
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is
cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is
expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
diluted earnings per share.

Under the approved plan, the Group has issued shares to the VLCC Employee Welfare Trust at fair market
value determined on the date of issue which is holding the shares on behalf of the employees.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability

or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

e Debt instruments at amortised cost

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

«  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
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cash flows, and
e Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
This category is most applicable to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar financial

assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s consolidated balance sheet) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets and credit risk exposure.

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.
The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates
over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense
in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. .

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement :

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings or as payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, etc.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as
such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in
OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Group may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the

statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement
of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a
liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined
as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms. or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Earnings/ (Loss) per share

Basic earnings/(loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. _
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the
dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year as
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be
dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing
ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the
period, unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined

independently for each period presented

Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
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with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Treasury shares

The group has created a VLCC Employee Welfare Trust for providing share-based payment to its
employees. The group uses trust as a vehicle for distributing shares to employees under the employee
remuneration schemes. The Group has issued shares to the trust at fair market value determined on the date
of issue which is holding the shares on behalf of the employees. The group treats trust as its extension and
shares held by the trust are treated as treasury shares.

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Group’s own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration, if
reissued, is recognised in equity. Share options exercised during the reporting period are satisfied with

treasury shares.

2.4 New Accounting Standards

Disclosure of Ind AS 115 : Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Ind AS 115 was issued on 28 March 2018 and supersedes Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts and Ind AS 18
Revenue and it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with its customers. Ind
AS 115 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers and
requires that revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

Ind AS 115 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and
circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also
specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to

fulfilling a contract. In addition, the standard requires extensive disclosures.

The Group adopted Ind AS 115 using the full retrospective method of adoption. Accordingly, restated
comparative numbers and presented opening balance sheet as at April 01, 2017. The Company has applied
practical expedient and not considered contracts already closed as at year end for the catch-up impact.

The Impact on Statement of Profit & Loss, Equity and Balance Sheet is as below :-
Impact on Statement of Profit and Loss

@) Impact on Revenue

Revenuc before IND AS 115
Adjustment through IND AS 115
Beauty and Slimming (Refer a below) |
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Income from franchisees (Refer b below) (36) (68
Display charges and other rebates (Refer ¢

below) # (1,827) (1,838)
Revenue post IND AS 115 85,244 83,489

# Reclassified from other expenses

Impact on Balance Sheet as per Ind AS :-
@) Impact on Equity

Equity before IND AS 115 13,905 18,756
Adjustment as per Ind AS 115 through '
Retained Earnings 979) 979
- Beauty and Slimming (Refer a below) (798) (798)
_Income from franchisees (Refer b below) (181) (181)
Impact on Profit and Loss (61) -
-Beauty and Slimming (Refer a below) 7 -
-Income from franchisees (Refer b below) (68) -
Equity post IND AS 115 12,865 17,777

- (i) Impact on Contract Liabilities

: I’Jalfticﬁtl;‘«irs‘

Contract Liabilities before IND AS 115 7,714 7,239 6,892
Adjustment through IND AS 115 through
RE (Refer (i) above) - - 973
Adjustment through IND AS 1 15(Refer d
below) ## 406 332 259
Adjustment through IND AS 115 (atb) 18 61 -
Contract Liabilities post IND AS 115 8,138 7,632 8,129

## Reclassified with corresponding impact on current liabilities.
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(iii)  Impact on Trade Receivable

[ 3 March 31, | March31, | March3l,
Particulars 2019 2018 2017
Trade Receivables before IND AS 115* 5,511 7,318 6,611
Adjustment through IND AS 115 (Refer
¢ below) ** (437) (250) (249
Trade Receivables post IND AS 115 5,074 7,068 6,362

* Adjusted for other reclassifications other than for impact of Ind-AS 115
**Reclassified with corresponding impact on provisions- current

The nature of these adjustments is described below:

A. Revenue
a) Beauty and Slimming packages

Before Ind-AS 115, revenue from fees received from customers towards beauty and slimming packages
were recognised on a pro-rata basis over the period of the package. After adoption of Ind-AS 115, the
revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers and involve
judgements in determination of contract price, determination of timing of completion of performance
obligation etc. Based on best estimate the adjustments are made to the revenues and contract liabilities
earlier recognised. Accordingly, the revenue from beauty and slimming packages has increased by INR 18
lakhs and by INR 7 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 respectively with a
corresponding impact to the statement of profit and loss. Further, as at March 31, 2017 the impact of Rs
798 lakhs on the contract liability has been adjusted from Retained earnings as per transitional provisions

of Ind-AS 115.

b) Income from Franchisees

Before Ind-AS 115, revenue in respect of non-refundable lump sum fees received from the franchisee’s is
recognised over the period of the contract after attributing revenue to services rendered on the first time set
up whereas after adoption of Ind AS 115, the entire non-refundable lump sum fees is recognised over the
period of contract. Accordingly, the revenue from franchisees has decreased by INR 36 lakhs and by INR
68 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 respectively with a corresponding impact
to the statement of profit and loss. Further, as at March 31, 2017 the impact of Rs 180 lakhs on the contract
liability has been adjusted from Retained earnings as per transitional provisions of Ind-AS 115.

¢) Display charges and other rebates

Before Ind AS 115, display charges and other rebates (e.g. joint promotional schemes with select customers)
were disclosed in other expenses. However, after adoption of Ind AS 115, these are adjusted to the
transaction price as these do not represent a good or service distinct from sale of products. Accordingly,
revenue from contracts with customers has decreased by INR 1,827 lakh and INR 1,837 lakh for the year
ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 respectively, with a corresponding decrease in other expenses.
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d) Contract Liability

Before Ind AS 115, advances from customers were disclosed under other current liabilities. However, after
adoption of Ind AS 115, advances from customers represent contract liability and thus, contract liability
has been recognised separately in balance sheet for prior periods presented with a corresponding decrease
in other current liabilities.

¢) Refund Liability

Before Ind AS 115, an estimate for expected sales return was included in provisions. However, after
adoption of Ind AS 115, provision for expected sales return represent refund liability and thus, refund
liability has been netted off from trade receivables for all periods presented with a corresponding decrease

in provisions.

Standards issued but not vet effective:

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Group’s
financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when
they become effective.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Amendment Rules, 2017 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 amending
the following standard: ’

Ind AS 116 Leases

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified by MCA on 30 March 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including
-appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Ind AS

116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting
for finance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases
of ‘low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12
months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease
payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the
lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lessees will be also required to re-measure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (¢.g., &
change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used
to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the re-measurement of the
lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset

Ind AS 116 is effective for the Group w.e.f. April 01, 2019 using either one of the following two methods:
(a) retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 Accounting

Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, with the option to elect certain practical expedients
as defined within Ind AS 116 (the full retrospective method); or
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(b) retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying Ind AS 116 recognized at the date of
initial application (April 01, 2019) and providing certain additional disclosures as defined in Ind AS 116
(the modified retrospective method).

The Group intends to adopt the standard from 1 April 2019.The Group continues to evaluate the available
transition methods and its contractual arrangements. The ultimate impact on leases resulting from the
application of Ind AS 116 will be subject to assessments that are dependent on many variables, including,
but not limited to, the terms of the contractual arrangements and the mix of business. The Group's
considerations also include, but are not limited to, the comparability of its financial statements and the
comparability within its industry from application of the new standard to its contractual arrangements.

Ind AS 21: The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

The amendment clarifies on the accounting of transactions that include the receipt or payment of advance
consideration in a foreign currency. The appendix explains that the date of the transaction, for the purpose
of determining the exchange rate, is the date of initial recognition of the non-monetary prepayment asset or
deferred income liability. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, a date of transaction is
established for each payment or receipt. The Group is evaluating the impact of this amendment on its
financial statements.

Ind AS 12: Income Taxes

The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable
profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary difference.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity should determine future taxable profits
and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more
than their carrying amount. Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on
initial application of the amendments, the change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period
may be recognised in opening retained earnings (or in another component of equity, as appropriate),
without allocating the change between opening retained earnings and other components of equity. Entities
applying this relief must disclose that fact.

These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Group as the Group has no deductible
temporary differences or assets that are in the scope of the amendments.

Ind AS 19 — plan amendment, curtailment or settlement.

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs :ssued amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’,
in connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.

The amendments require an entity:

« to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the
period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and

« to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in
a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling.
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Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The
Company has established an implementation team to implement and evaluate the changes to accounting
system and processes, and additional disclosure requirements that may be necessary.

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management
to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including
contingent liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year. The management believes that
the estimates used in preparation of the consolidated financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future
results could differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates
are recognized in the periods in which the results are known/ materialise.

3.1 Significant judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee

The Group has entered into operating lease arrangements for certain facilities and office premises. The
Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the
lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property and the fair value
of the asset, that it significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties are not transferred to the
Group and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

3.2 Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting

- date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
~ liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and

estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes
or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they oceur. ‘

Share-based payments

The Group initially measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using a black-scholes
model to determine the fair value of the option granted. Estimating fair value for share-based payment
transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the
terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs
to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and
making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-
based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 34.

Taxes -
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit

will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present
value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes
in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for
plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality
tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and

gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.
Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 32.

Provision for decommissioning

In measuring the provision for site restoration obligation, the Group uses the technical estimates to
determine the expected cost of dismantling and removing the improvement or infrastructure for properties
under lease. Discount rates are determined based on the government bond rate of a similar period as the

liability.

Also refer Note 2.4 for judgements on revenue recognition. .
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4 Property, plant & equipment

Land  Duildings Plantsnd Furniture  Vehicles OHfice Leasebold Computers Total Capital work
Machinery and fixtures equipment improvements In progress #
Gross Block
(At cost)
At April 1,207 - 2,109 6,040 1,343 787 3,373 28,757 387 42,796 538
Add: Additions 261 104 74 216 171 1,426 2,677 82 5,653
Less: Disposals - - (449) (52) (65) (115) (882) a8 (519
Less: Capitalzation - (384)
Translation adjustments - - - S 11 184 236 67 507
At March 31,2018 261 2,213 6,305 1,515 903 4,870 30,790 521 47378 154
Add: Additions o 1 269 116 5 1,747 1,723 467 3,929
Less: Disposals - - {ds1) (46) {25 M (573) 0 (1,%87)
Less: Capitaization - {154)
Translation adjustments - - - 22 11 335 1,303 ] 1,733
At March 31, 2019 261 2214 6,113 1,607 390 6,47% 33,241 657 $1,458 -
Depreciation
At April 1,2017 - 111 1,113 368 251 1,139 8,495 285 11,764
Add: Charge - 94 794 205 141 646 3,856 141 5,878
Translation adjustments . . (358 @) @n (34) (565 01 (1,034)
Less: Disposals - - - i3 10 148 64 46 180
As at March 31,2018 - 105 1,583 542 75 1,900 11,352 461 16,888
Add: Charge - 96 652 196 136 888 4,038 119 6,128
Less: Disposals - . (354 3) @n (34) (565) (n (1,084
Translation adjustments - - - 12 5 168 457 49 691
As at March 31, 2019 - 301 1851 707 492 2921 15,782 619 22,673
Net carrying value
At March 31,2018 261 2,008 4,752 973 £28 2E9’70 18,938 60 30,4%0 154
At March 31,2019 261 1,913 4,262 900 398 3,554 17,459 38 28,785 -

# Capital work in progress as at March 31, 2019 majorly comprises of leasehold improvements.

Disposals includes asset wrie off of Gross ook value Rs. 1,714 Lakhs ( Net

Book Value Rs. 689 Lakhs)
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5, Intangible assets

Computer software Trademarks Total Intangibles
under
develppment |
Gross Block
(At cost)
At April 1,2017 733 733 -
Add: Additions 239 239
At March 31, 2018 # 972 972 -
Add: Additions 16 - 16 5
At March 31, 2019 # 938 938 5
Amortisation and impaivment
At April 1, 2017* 176 177 -
Add: Amortisation charge 162 - 161 -
At March 31, 2018 338 338 -
Add: Amortisation charge 151 151 -
At March 31, 2019 * 489 489 -
Net carrying value
At March 31, 2018 634 - 634 -
At March 31, 2019 499 - 499 5
s Absolute amounts of trademarks before rounding off is INR 21,226,
# Absolute amounts of trademarks before rounding off is INR 42,452.
6. Goodwill Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Opening Balance 1,947 1,821

Add: On account of business commbination during the year 79

Effects of exchange translation 47

Closing balance 5965 1&

6 (i) Tmpairment tests for Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at 31 March and when ci
Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amo!
relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment los:

relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment

when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

The following are the key assumptions for the CGU:-
Revenue (% of annual growth)
Pre-tax discount rate (%)

Operating Margin (% of sales)

Management has determined the values assigned to each of the above
performed impainment testing

and specific risk relating to the business. The Group has
impairment charge has been identified.

Significant estimate: Tmpact of possible changes in key asswmptions:-

Sensivity analysis:

9.5%

key assumptions based on the past performance
for the above CGU and no

rcumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
unt of each CGU (or Group of CGUs) to which the goodwill
s is recognised. Impairment losses

annually as at 31 March at the CGU level, as apprepriate, and

If the estimated operating margin used in the value-in-use calculation for the projection CGU had been 1% lower than management’s
estimates at 31 March 2019, the Company would still have a higher recoverable amount and no additional impairment against the

carrying amount of goodwill will be charged.

If the pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections of this CGU had been
recoverable amount of the Company would still be higher than the carrying amount a1

goodwill would have to be recorded.

The Company has considered and assessed reasonably possible changes for other key assumptions and h
instances that could cause the carying amount of any CGU to exceed its recoverable amount.

1% higher than management’s estimates, the
d no impairment against the carrying amoust of

ave not identified any
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? Financial assets

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
7 (a} Non-current investments

Investment in povernment securitics (Unquotedy (at amortised cost)* 0 0
6 year national savings certificate (pledged with sales tax
1] L]
* Absolute smount before rounding off are Rs 23,000 and 43,000 as at March 31,
2019 and March 31, 2018.
7 {b) Loans (Unsecured considered good uniess otherwise stated) March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Non current
Security deposits
- Considered good 894 858
- Considered doubtful 160 169
1,054 1.018
Less: Allowance for doubtfial deposit (160) (160)
894 858
Current
Security deposits 839 1,219
Advance 10 employees 192 116
1,031 1,335
7(c) Trade receivables March 31,2019 N March 31, 2018
Unsecured
- Considered good 5,074 7,068
- Considered donbtful 641 1,301
3,715 8,369
Less :Impairement allowance for doubtful trade receivables
- Considered doubtful (641) (1,301)
‘Total ‘F'rade receivables £ 074 68

No trade receivables are dug from directors or other officers of the Group either severally or jointly with any other person ot from firms or
private companies respectively in which any director is & parin.r, a director or 8 meinber,
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generaily on terms of not more than 30 days.

7 (d) Cash and cash equivalents March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Balances with banks:
- Om current account 1,576 1,779
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three monshs (refer note {i) below) 8 -
Cash on hand * 1,033 608
Chegques on hand 1,003 114
Credit card reccivables 607 580
4227 3,681
+ Ingludes foreign currencies equivalent to INR Lakhs 130 112
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
7 (¢) Other bank balances (refer note i) below)
MNon Current
Deposits with original maturity of more than twelve months 99 154
. 29 154
Current
Depasits with original maturity of more than three months but 51 19
less than twelve months
Deposits with original maturity of more than twelve months 19 0
70 39
Note:
(i} Out of above deposits referred in note 7(d) & 7(e), deposits v 116
todged with banks in favour of government authorities
7 (f) Other {inancial assets (Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise ) March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Non Current
Interest accrued on bank deposits 1 - 2
1 2
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current
Interest accrued on fixed depasit 1 1
Qther receivable 51 47
52 48
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3  Inventories
Raw Materials (at cost)

Less : Provision for slow moving and obsotete inventory

Packing Materials (at cost)
Less - Peovision for slow moving and obsolete inventory
Work in progress (at cost)

Finished goods (at lower of cost or net realisable value)[Refer Note (i} belaw]
Less : Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory

Stock in trade (acquired for trading) [Refer Note (i) below]
(Incl. stock in transit INR Z Lakhs March 31, 2018: INR 19

Lakhs}
Less - Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory

Consumables (at cost) (Incl. stock in transit INR 62 Lakhs March 31, 2018: Nil)

Total

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
750 785
{56) 2n

694 764
1,152 1,046
(211) (175)
941 871
20 26
1,492 1,455
(68) (111},
1,424 1344
1,425 1,376
(38} (54)
1,387 1,322
2,136 2,177
2,136 2177
6,602 6,504

@) Finished goods include goods aggregating 1o INR 749 lakh (March 31, 2018: INR 961 lakh} lying with C&F agents.
(i) Stock-in-trade includes goods aggregating to INR 242 lakh (March 31, 2018: INR 361 1akh) lying with C&F agents.

92 Other assets {(Unsecured, considered goad, unless otherwise stated)

Non- Current
Capital advances

Tax paid under protest

(i) VAT/Service tax/Custom Duty
(i) Luxury Tax

Deferred Lease -secusity deposit
Cther Advances

Prepaid expenses

Unsecured, considered doubtful
Sales tax paid under protest
Provision for doubtful advances

Other assets (Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Current

Advance to suppliers

Balances with goverarent authorities(including GST Refund Receivable*)
Draty drawback

Focus product scheme (FPS) receivable

Deferred Lease -security deposit

Prepaid expenses

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
13 144
29 23
13 13
268 369
60 60
9 24
21 21
(21) 21y
397 638
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2{H38
752 1,282
888 1,476
8 10
§29 104
85 89
621 585
2,483 3,546

# 3ST refund is receivable under Budgetary Support offered by the Government of India as per scheme notified vide Notification dated
(5/10/2017 issued by DIPP and as per CBEC Circular No. 1060/9/2017-CX dated 27/11/2017.
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10. Equity Share Capital

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Authorised share capital
5,00,00,000 (March 31, 2018: 5,00,00,000) Equity
shares of INR 10 each with voting rights
5,000 5,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
3,76,68,283 (March 31, 2018: 3,76,68.283) Equity 3,767 3,767
shares of INR 10 each
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 3,767 3,767
#) Reconciliation of the shares gutstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
No. of shares Amount
Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid: in lakhs
At April 01, 2017 377 3,767
Issued during the year - -
At March 31, 2013 377 3,767
Issued during the year - -
At March 31, 2019 377 3,767

b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares:

entitled to one vote per share. The Company

In the event of liquidation of the Company,
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts.
held by the sharcholders.

¢) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

During the year no interim/ final dividend has been paid or proposed by the Company.

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of the equity shares is
declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the

board of directors is subject to the approval of sharchelders in the ensuing annvai general meeting.

the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares

Mareh 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Equity Shares of INR 10 each fully paid No. Di: % holdln'g in| No. of shares (in] % hol'ding in the
shares (in ! the equity Lakhs) equity shares
Lalkhs) shares
Mr.Mukesh Luthra 02| 2437% 92 24.37%
Mrs. Vandana Luthra 1671  44.35% 167 44.35%
Leon International Limited 51 13.65% 51 13.65%
M/s Indivision India Partners 57 15.11% 57 15.11%
Total 367 367

Equity shares with voting rights
Fully paid up by way of bonus shares issued on
September 27, 2013

354 Lakhs

¢) Shares reserved for issue under options :

d) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

For details of shares reserved for issuc under the employee stock option (ESOP) plan of the Group, refer note 34.
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for the year ended March 31,2019

11.
1i(a).

I

Notes:

{

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings

Non current

Term loans from banks (Secured) (Refer Note (1) below)
Term loan - Others {Unsecured) (Refer Note (2) below)
Vehicle loans from banks/others (Secured)

Cuttent Maturities of long term borrowing disclosed under
sother current financial liabilities" [Refer note 1 1(c)]

Current
Cash credit {Secured) (Refer Note (3) below)
Cash credit (Unsecured) {Refer Note (3) below)

Total

Apgregate secured loans
Aggregate unsecured loans

Details of terms of repayment and security provided in respect of the
secured long-term borrowings:
Term loan from banks:

HDFC Bank

HDFC Bank [Refer Note (i)]
HDFC Bank [Refer Note (ii)]
HDFC Bank

Axis Bank UAE {Refer Note {iii)]
ICICI Bank [Refer Note (iv)]

Yes Bank [Refer Note (v}]

Yes Bank [Refer Note (vi)]

ICIC1 Bank

1CICI Bank [Refer Note (vii)]
HDFC Bank [Refer Note (viii)]
Mashreq Bank

UOB Bank [Refer Note ()]
LJOB Bank [Refer Note (x)]

UOB Bank [Refer Note (xi)]
UOB Bank [Refer Note (xii) ]

Vehicle loans:

Emirates National Bank of Dubai [Refer Note (xiii}]
HDFC Bank [Refer Note (xiv)]

Kotak Mahindra Prirae Limited [Refer Note (xv}]
ICICI Bank Limited [Refer Note (xvi)]

The loan is secured by a first pari passu charge on all the stock, book debts (including escrow on credit card receivables) an

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
8,831 12,787
1,200 -

207 279
(3,416) (4,315)
6,822 8,751
5,082 5,148

500 432
5,582 5,580
12,404 14,331
14,120 18,214
1,700 432
15,820 18,646
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
- 58
167 500
865 1,371

. 373
1,010 1,339
850 1,150
714 1,010
1,495 1,622
- 251
2,090 2,868
739 936

- 237
186 199
321 342
225 231

167 -

85 116

76 o6

29 44

18 23
9,037 13,066

d movable

plant and machinery of the company, both present and future. Originally the loan is repayable in 54 monthly instalments out of these 6

monthly instalments of [NR 27.8 Lakhs alongwith interest at Base rate plus

125% are pending s on March 31, 2019
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(i) Term loan of USD 3,000,000 obtained by VLCC International Inc. The effective interest rate on the loan is LIBOR + 350 bps per
annum. Originally the loan is repayable in 60 monthly instalments, The balance of loan is repayable in different instalments and all are
maturing in September 2020.

(i) Loan facility of USD 3,000,000 obtained by VLCC International {L.L.C) which is secured by the assignment of credit card receivables
of the subsidiary, an exclusive charge over the current assets and fixed assets of the subsidiary, corporate guarantes of VLCC Health
Care Limited and VLCC International Inc., and post dated cheques for the term loan insteliments of the subsidiary, Originally the loan
is repayable in 60 monthly instalments. The effective interest rate on term loan is & month LIBOR+375 bps per annum. The
outstanding loan is repayable in 28 instalments of USD 50,000 each as on March 31 2019,

(iv) The loan is secured by a first pari passu charge on all current assets and movable fixed assets both present and future. Originally the
loan is repayable in 60 monthly instalments out of these 34 monthly instalments of INR 25 Lakhs each alongwith interest at Base rate
plus 0.9% are pending as on March 31, 2019.

(v) The loan is secured by 2 first pari passu charge on all current assets and movable fixed assets both present and future. Originally the
loan is repayable in 54 monthly instalments out of these balance 29 monthly instalments of INR 24.6 Lakhs alongwith interest at Base
rate plus 0.50% are pending as on March 31, 2019,

(vi) The loan is secured by a first pari passu charge on all current assets and movable fixed assets both present and future. Criginally the
loan is repayable in 60 monthly instalments out of these balance 42 monthly instalments of INR 35.6 Lakhs alongwith interest at Base
rate plus 0.50% are pending as on March 31, 2019,

{vii) Loan availed by VLCC International LLC and is secured by t, first pari passu charge on all current assets and movable fixed assets
bath present and future. Originally the loan is repayable in 48 monthly instalments. The loan is repayable in 29 monthly instalments of
USD 104,167 each alongwith interest at LIBOR plus 350 points .
(viii) The term loan is taken from HDFC Bank on a interest rate at MCLR plus 0.45% p.a for the purpose of new plant at Guwahati. The
loan is secured by an exclusive charge on the land, building and movable asssts located at the new manufacturing facility situated at

Guwahati and second pari passu charge on all current assets of the Company. Originally the loan is repayable in 60 monthly
installments out of which 33 monthly instalments of INR 16.43 lakh and interest was repayable as on 3]st March 2019.

Some of the financial covenant as per term loan agreement of HDFC bank limited was not met during the year and the Company has
informed the bank about the same. The bank has not yet demanded the repayment, accordingly the term loan of INR 542 lacs has been
disclosed as 'mon-current.

(ix) Loan availed by VLCC Singapore Pte Ltd to finance the acquisition of leasehold property. The loan is secured by a charge of the
leasehold property and catries an effective interest rate of 2.99% per annum. The loant is repayable in 240 monthly instalments
commencing from December 2009.

(x) Loan availed by VLCC Singapore Pte Ltd to finance the acquisition of leasehold property. The loan is secured by a charge of the
teasehold property and carries an effective interest rate of 2.99% per annum. The loan is repayable in 240 monthly instelments
commencing from June 2011

{xi) Loan availed by VLCC Singapore Pte Ltd is to finance the working capital requirment and carries an effective intcrest rate of 2.18%
per annum. The loan is repayable in 300 monthly instalments commencing from Avgust 2015.

{xil) Loan availed by VLCC Singapore Pte Ltd is to finance the working capital requirment and carries an effective interest rate of 2.77%
per annum, The loan is repayable in 36 monthly instalments commencing from September 2018.

(xiii) The vehicle loan is taken from Emirates National Bank of Dubai on a interest rate of 5.16%-5.6% p.a . The loans are secured by
hypothecation of Tespective vehicles., Tepayable in 30 monthly instaiments of AED 20,450 alongwith interest.

(xiv) The vehicle loan is 1aken from HDFC Bank on a interest rate of 8%-8.3% p.a . The loans are secured by hypothecation of respective
vehicles., repayable in 38 monthly instalments of TNR 2.3 Lakhs alongwith interest.

{xv) The vehicle loan is taken from Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd. on a interest rate of 9.39% p.a . The Yoans are secured by hypothecation of
respective vehicles, repayable in 20 monthly instalments of INR 1.5 Lakhs alongwith interest.

(xvi) The Vehicle loan is taken for vehicle from ICICI Bank is taken on a interest rate of 8.51% p.a . The loans are secured by hypothecation
of respective vehicles., repayable in 36 monthly instalments of INR 0.61 Lakhs alongwith interest.

(2) The unsecured loan has been taken from Palm Land Hospitality Private Limited and is payable within 3 years alongwith interest at 12% p.a.

{3) Details of terms of repayment provided in respect of the secured current borrowings:
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(a)
{b)

(<}

@

(e)

0

@

11(b).

11 {e).

Cash Credit March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Secured:

Yes Bank [Refer Note (b)] 1,636 1,703

HDFC Bank [Refer Note ()] 2,930 2,604

Standard Chartered Bank [Refer Note (d)] - 290

Axis Bank Limited [Refer Nate (e)] 2 144

Mashreq Bank [Refer Note (f)] 514 407
5,082 5,148

Unsecured:

Yes Bank Limited {Refer Note ()} 500 432

500 432

5,582 5.580

The Group has not defaulted in repayment of loans and interest during the year.

The Yoan i secured by a first pari passu charge on all current assets and movable fixed assets (other than vehicles), both present and

future and payable on demand along with interest at base rate plus 0.50%.

The loan is secured by a first pari passu charge on all current assets and second pari passu charge on all movable fixed assets, both

present and future along with interest of HDFC Bank MCLR Rate + 0.60% (Margin) per annum.

The loan is secured by a first pari passu charge on all current assets and second pari passu charge on all movable fixed assets, both

present and future along with interest of Standard Chartered Bank MCLR Rate + 1 \70% (Margin) per annum.

The loan is secured by a first pari passu charge on all current assets and movable fixed assets, both present

demand along with interest at base rate plus 1.10%.

and future and payable on

Secured by the assignment of reccivables, assignment of insurance policies covering stocks, hypothecation of stocks, irrevocable

assignment of credit card receivables.
The loan is payable on demand along with interest at base rate plus 0.50%.

Trade payables

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro enterprises and Small 20,470 19,531
enterpriscs
Total 20,470 19,531
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-50 day terms.
Other financial liabilities
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Non- Current
Security deposits received 197 121
197 121
Current
Current maturities of long term borrowings {Refer note 11(a}) 3416 4315
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 44 48
Interest payable on security deposits 4 4
Payable for capital purchases 573 1,054
4,037 5421
4,234 5,542
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d March 31,2019

12.  Provisions

Non- current March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (Refer to note 32) 1,014 849
1,014 849
Other provisions
Provision for decommissioning liabilities 75 68
75 68
1,089 917
Current March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (Refer to note 32) 242 160
Provision for compensated absences 515 409
757 569

Provision for decommissioning liabilities

According to operating lease agreements entered by the Group, it has to incurr cost for restoring lease premises to the original
condition at the time of expiry of lease period. Approximately 50% of the outflow is expected to be in 1-3 years. Remaining

outflow is expected to be in 4-9 years.

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
At the beginning of the year 68 62
Arising during the year 7 6
At the end of the year 75 68
13. Contract liabilities March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Non-current
Deferred revenue 826 444
826 444
Current
Deferred revenuc 6,905 6,857
Advance from customers 406 332
7.311 7,189
Total 8,137 7,633
Contract Liabilities consists of
(i) revenue relating to unexecuted packages of beauty and slimming services for which amount has been received in advance from custol
and are non refundable,
(if) revenue relating to franchises sign up fee for which amount has been received in advance from franchisor and are non refundable and are
recognized over the period of contract with the franchisee.
14. Other liabilities March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Nou-current
Provision for lease equalisation 159 155
Deferred grant liability 14 17
173 172
Current
Interest acorued on trade payables 20 7
Statutery dues 1,067 546
Advance from franchisee 364 226
Deferred grant liability 3 3
Provision for lease equalisation 40 44
1,494 826
1,667 998
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for the year ended March 31, 2019

15.

Income tax
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March
31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 are:

(1) Statement of profit and loss

Tax Expense:

Current tax

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year
Deferred tax:

Relating to urigination and reversal of temporary differences

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

{ii) Other Comprehensive Income

Deferred rax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:

Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Income tax charged to OCT

b) Current tax asset/ (liabilities) (net)

Current tax assets
Current tax (liabilities)
Current tax asset/ (liabilities) (net)

March 31,2019 March 31,2018
174 &9
(5) 12
155 (219)
324 (138)
March 31,2019 Mareh 31, 2018
0 W
0 (138
3,322 3,321
2,792 2,692
530 629

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by applicable tax rate of respective jurisdiction for

March 31, 2019, March 31, 2018:
Particulars

Profiti(loss) before tax and after exceptional items:

ncome Tax expense @ Holding Company's domestic tax rate of 34.608%

Adjustments in respect of current income fax of previous years
Tax impacts of following items:

1osses on which no/lower tax is applicable

CSR Expenses

Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes

Rate difference

Reversal of deferred lax assets/deferred tax assets not recorded
Others {net)

At the effective income tax rate as applicable

I[ncome tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

Balance sheet

Deferred tax assets relates to the following
Depreciation/amortisation on property, plant and equipment/intangible
Employes benefits

Provisien for inventory

Provision for doubtful trade receivables
Provision for doubtful advances

Provision for doubtful deposits

Carry forward losses/unabsorbed depreciation
MAT credit entitlement

Others

Total deferred tax assets

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(4,096) (4.951)
(1,418} (1,713)

(&) 12
350 509
5 7
39 94
67 -
1,261 864
3 39
324 (138)
324 (138}
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
1,184 1,136
188 275
109 125
244 457
21 8
54 54
881 873
1,655 1,655
226 135
4,562 4.718
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Statement of profit and loss March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Deferred tax assets relates to the following

Depreciation/amortisation on property, plant and equipment/intangible 48 (45)
Employee benefits (2) 19
Carry forward losses/unabsorbed depreciation 8 -
Provision for doubtful debts/provision for impaitment (214) 171
Provision for inventory (16} L
Provision for doubtful advances 12 5
MAT credit entitlement - )
Others (net) 9 (3)
Total deferred tax assets (Net) (155) 221

The Group offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if, it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax

authority.

Movement in Deferved tax assets March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
At the beginning of the year 4718 4,498
Tax credit/(charge) recognised in profit and loss (155) 219
Tax credit/(charge) recognised in OCI 0 1
At the end of the year 4,563 4718

This space has been left blank intentionally
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16. Revenue from contracts with customers

March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Sale of products [Refer Note (i) below] 24,005 25,751

Sale of services [Refer Note (ii) below] 60,957 56,953

Other operating revenues [Refer Note (iii) below} 282 785

Revenue from contracts with customers 85,244 83,489
Notes:

(i) Tt is not practicable to furnish the broad heads in view of the considerable number of items diverse in size and

(ii) Sale of services comprises:

Beauty & slimming services 53,376 50,827
Tuition fees 6,401 4,972
Franchisees and collaborator 280 449
Royalty income 900 703
60,957 56,953
¢iii) Other operating revenues comprise:
Focus Product Scheme License 25 21
GST-Refund 211 671
Subsidy from government 33 80
Duty drawback 13 13
282 785
Sale of products 24,005 25,751
Revenue from contracts with customers 85,244 83,489
(iv) Timing of revenue recognition
Goods/Services transferred at a point in time 33,336 35,174
Services transferred over time 51,908 48,315
(v) India 55,947 55,496
Middle East 23,139 21,053
Asia 5,793 ) 6,688
Rest of the world 363 252
Revenue from contracts with customers 85,244 83,489
(vi) Contract balances
Contract liabilities 8,137 7,633
Note:
Contract liabilities includes advance from customers received for supply of services.
(v) Right of return asscts and refund liabilities
Right of return assets (included in inventories) 32 -
Refund liability (netied off from 437 250
(vi} Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price
Revenue as per contracted price 94,612 52,110
Adjustments:
$ales discounts and schemes 4,659 3,991
Display charges 873 974
Sales return 3,836 3,656
Revenue from contracts with customers 85.244 83489
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March 31,2019 March 31,2018
vii) Performance obligations
The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations
(unsatisfied or partially
Revenue expected to be recognised upon delivery of Services
Within one year 7,311 7,189
More than one year 826 444

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of goods to the customers. The unsatisfied
performance obligations represents goods not delivered to the customers by end of the reporting period,

17. Other income

March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Profit on sale of investment - 4
Miscellaneous income 76 60
76 64
18. Finance income
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Interest from banks on deposits
[Taxes deducted at source INR 1 Lakhs (March 24 21
31, 2018: INR 2 Lakh)]
. Interest on Security Deposits (refer note (i)} 134 83
- Interest on Joans and advances 3 1
- Interest on income tax retund 11 -
172 110
Note (3}

Interest on security deposits which is at fair value has been measured using effective interest rate method and the difference between
fair value and transaction value of the sscurity deposit has been recognised as deferred tease expense and deferred lease expensas has

been amortised as rental expenses.
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for the year ended March 31, 2019

19.

20.

21,

Cost of materials consumed
Material consumed
Raw Materials consumed

Opening stock
Add: Purchases

Less: Closing stock

Packing materials consumed
Opening stock
Add: Purchases

Less: Closing stock
Consumables consumed

Opening stock
Add: Purchases

Less: Closing stock

Total

Bt is not practical to furnish consumption of raw raterials and packing materials more than 1

considerable number of items diverse in size and nature.

(Increase) / decrease in inventories
Inventories at the end of the year
- Finished goods
- Stock-in-trade
- Work in Progress

Inventories at the beginning of the year
- Finished goods
- Stock-in-trade
- Work in progress

Less : Provision / (reversal of provision) for obsolete and slow moving
Inventory

(Increase) / decrease in inventories

Purchase of goods for resale

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds

Gratuity expenses (Refer to note 32)
Staff welfare expenses

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
763 651
3317 2,855
4,080 3,506
694 763
3,386 2.743
871 973
3,530 3,858
4,401 4,831
941 871
3,450 3,960
2,177 1,646
5,796 6,096
7,973 7.742
2,136 2,177
5837 5,865
12I683 12!268

0% in view of the

March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
1,492 1,455

1,425 1,376

20 26

2,937 2,857

1,455 1,173

1,376 1,695

25 18

2,856 2,886
59 (103)

(140y 132

1,890 940

March 31.2019 March 31,2018
29,148 26,061

621 539

310 282

672 634

30,751 27516
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22, Finance cost

Interest on
-Term loan 793 1,087
-Others 58 11
-Cash credit 518 456
Other finance cost 1,540 1,436
Unwinding of discount and effect of changes in discount rate on 7 6
2916 2,996
23, Depreciation and amortization ¢expense
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Depreciation of property, plant & equipment (Refer to note 4) 6,128 5,878
Amortization of intangible assets (Refer to note 3) 151 161
Total 6,279 6,039
24. Other expenses - March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Rent [Refer note 28] 8,033 7,727
Advertisement and sales promation 11,132 14,112
Consumables 41 49
Power and fuel 163 154
Electricity and water 1,292 1,265
Repairs and maintenance
- Building 328 275
- Equipment 144 151
- Others 1,170 985
Insurance 180 226
Rates & taxes 82 155
Communication expenses 543 614
Travelling and conveyance 2,855 2,744
Vehicle running and maintenance 143 136
Printing and stationery 151 197
Freight and forwarding charges 740 296
Sub-contracting expenscs - 521 568
Commission to clearing and forwarding agent 934 875
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility 23 21
Legal and professional charges 2,437 2,520
Payments to auditors [Refer Note (i) below] 103 99
House keeping charges 1,571 1,500
Office cxpenses 620 703
Generator rent and maintenance charges 221 218
Laundry expenses 185 198
Security charges 210 180
Warchouse charges 161 165
Directors sitting fees 23 18
Exhibition expenses 199 113
Student training exp. 78 66
Provision/write back for doubtful trade receivables (Net of bad debts (481) 316
written off Rs. 197 Lakhs (March 31, 2018:37 Lakhs)
Provision for doubtful advances 14 31
Provision for inventory 12 224
Tnventory writien off/adjustments 327 415
Advances and deposits written off 11 14
Loss on fixed assets sold / scrapped 8 39
Net lossf(gain) on foreign currency transactions and translation (100) ()]
Miscellaneous expenses 752 688
Total 34,828 38,652

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018
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Note (i)

Payment to Auditors March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

Payments to the auditors comptises (net of service tax input credit,

where applicable):

Audit fee 41 36

In other capacity

Other services 5 5

Reimbursement of expenses 4 4

Payment to Other auditors 52 52

To cost auditors for cost audit 2 2

Total 104 99
24(a) EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Disposal of substantial assets of subsidiary 381 -

Loss on sale of investment of subsidiary - 71

Total 381 71

During the year, Wyan Tnternational SDN BHD, one of Group's subsidiary has entered into a business transfer agreement

1o dispose their business operations and fixed assets.

25. Earnings per share (EPS) March 31, 201% March 31, 2018
The foliowing reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and
diluted EPS computation:
Nominal value of equity shares (INR) 10 10
Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity shareholders for computing basic and (4,420) (4.813)
dilutive EPS (A)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 377 377
for computing Basic EPS (B)
Dilutive effect of share based payments on weighted average number of - -
equity shares outstanding during the vear (INR)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year a77 377
for computing diluted EPS (C)
Basic caming per share (A/B) (11.73}) (12.78)
Diluted earning per share (A/C) (173 (12.78)

There have been no transactions invelving equity shares or potential equity shares between the reporting date and the

date of authorisation of these financial statements.
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26.

27.

(a)

(b)

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memotandum dated 26 August 2008 which
recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises shouid mention in their correspondence with its customers the
entrepreneurs memorandum number as allocated after filing of the memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect
of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at the year-end has been made in the financial statements based on
information available with the Company as under:

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

The amounts remaining unpaid to suppliers as at the end of the year

-Principal 195 58
-Interest 24 7
-the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, .

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with 2

-the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making

payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) - .
but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Smali and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 7 -
accounting year

-the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid

to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of 8 deductible 18 7

expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Contingent liabilities March 31,201% March 31,2018

Other Money for which the Group is contingently liable

. Value added tax demand [Refer Note (a) below] 178 178

- Entry tax demand [Refer Note (b) below] 44 -

- Service tax [Refer Note (¢) below] 27 15

- Luxury tax [Refer Note (d) below] 32 32

- Customs duty [Refer Note (¢) below] 91 9

. Income tax [Refer Note (£} below] 373 3N

- Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts [refer note (2 118 29
863 737

Company has 13 cases with respect to demand of VAT for different states for which appeals are pending with
Commissioner (Appeals) of respective state.

Entry tax demand comprise demand from VAT authorities of West Bengal under West Bengal Tax on Eniry of Goods
into Local Areas Act, 2012 for the period 2015-16 and 2016-17 amounting to INR 44 lakh (March 31, 2018: Nil) which
are pending before the appellant authoritics. The tax demands are mainly on account of non-payment of tax on goods
imported inte the state,

Company has 11 cases for service tax out of which, 8 are pending with CESTAT and 3 with Appeliate authorities .

Group has one case of luxury tax which is pending with Appeilate tribunal (commercial tax}.

Demand for customs duty aggregating to INR 91 Lakhs (March 31, 2018: 91 Lakhs) for the year 2012-16 is disputed by
the Company and the Company had preferred an appeal with CESTAT. On similar matter for another consignment,
CESTAT vide its order dated 30.6.2017 has already set aside the demand and gave order in favour of the Company.
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{f) Income Tax Demands: .

. Income tax demand comprise demand from the Indian tax authorities for payment of additional tax of INR 224 lakh
(March 31,2018: INR 227 lakh) upon completion of their tax review for the for the assessment years 2012-13, 2013-14,
2014-15 & 2015-16. The tax demands are mainly on account of disallowance of a portion of the tax holiday claimed by
the Company under the Income tax Act. The matter are pending before the Commissionet of Income tax (Appeals).

- Demand for assessment year 2010-11 is disputed by the Company and the Company had preferred an appeal before
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) which was substantially decided in favour of the Company in the financial year
2016-17 and consequently the demand has been reduced to INR 5.5 Lakhs from INR 97.2 Lakhs. Now the Appeal is
pending with Income Tax Apeliant Tribunal (ITAT). The Company had already deposited INR 20 Lakhs (March 31,
2018: INR 20 Lakhs) under protest,

- Demand for income tax aggregating to INR 116 Lakhs {March 31, 2018: INR 116 Lakhs) for the assessment year 201 1-
12 is disputed by the Company and the Company has preferred an appeal which is pending for hearing. The Company
has deposited INR 10 Lakhs {(March 31, 2018: INR 10 Lakhs) under profest.

- Demand for assessment year 2012-13 is disputed by the Company and the Company had preferred an appeal before
Commissiener of Income Tax (Appeals) which was substantially decided in favour of the Company in the financial year
201617 and consequently the demand has been reduced to INR 6.9 Lakhs from INR 73 Lakhs. Now the Appeal is
pending with ITAT which is pending for hearing .

- Demand for assessment year 2013-14 is disputed by the Company and the Company had preferred an appeal before
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) which was substantially decided in favour of the Company in the financial
year 2017-18 and consequently the demand has been reduced to INR 4.4 Lakhs. Now the Appeal is pending with TTAT
which is pending for hearing .

. Demand for income tax aggregating to INR 22 Lakhs (March 31, 2018: INR 22) for the assessment year 201415 is
disputed by the Company and the Company has preferred an appeal before Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals)
which was substantially decided in favour of the Company in the financial year 2018-19 and consequently the demand

has been reduced to INR 5.7 Lakhs. Now the Appeal is pending with ITAT which is pending for hearing.

- Demand for income tax aggregating to INR 9.8 Lakhs (March 31, 2018: 9.8 Lakiis) for the assessment year 2015-16 is
disputed by the Company and the Company has preferred an appeal which is pending for hearing before ITAT.

. Based on the provisions of various laws, the Group has been legaily advised that the above demands are likely to be
cither deleted or substantially reduced and accordingly no provision has been made.

Demand where likelihood of liability is remote :-

- Demand for income tax aggregating to INR 2726 Lakhs (Match 31, 2018: Nil) for the assessment year 2016-17 is on
account of disallowance by the income fax authorities on adhoc basis of certain expenses claimed by the Company and
deferred revenue offered for tax in subsequent year. The Company has filed an appeal before Commissioner of Income
Tax (Appeals) which is pending for hearing. The company has also filed High-Pitched petition with the Principal CCIT
(High Pitched Petition Committee). In view of this petition, the demand is not being pursued by Department.

The Company has favourable orders from Hon’ble High Court of Delhi against timing of taxation of deferred revenue in
earlier years in ils own case and also believes that the additions on account of disaliowances of expenses on adhoc basis

is not tenable.

The Company based on internal assessment supported by its fegal counsel believes that the possibility of any Tiability
devolving upon the Conpany against such demands upon final settlement, is remote and hence no provision has been
recognized in these financial statements.

(g) Lepal cases not provided for INR 118 lakh (March 31, 2018: INR 29 lakl) as the Company has been legally advised
that the outcome is likely to be in favour of the Company.
There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on PF dated 28¢th February,
2019 relating to provident fund matter. However, there is uncertainty with respect to the applicability of the judgement
and period from which the same applies and accordingly, the impact, if any, is not ascertainable and consequently no

effect has been given in the accounts.
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(ii) Commitments

28.

As at As at
March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account and not pravided for:

- Tangible assets

Details of leasing arrangements
The Group has entered into operating lease arrangements for certain facilities and office premises. Some of the leases

are non-canceliable and may be renewed for a further period of six years based on mutual agreement of the parties. The
lease agreements provide for an increase in the lease payments by 5% to 15% every three years. Expected future
commitments for non-canceliable leases are as follows:

As at As at
March 31,2019  March 31, 2018

Future minimum lease payments:

- not later than one year 858 636
- later than one vear and not later than five years 2,163 1,726
Lease payments recognised in the Statement of profit and loss [Refer note 24] 8,033 7,727
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(®

30.

(]
b

Related party transactions

In the normal course of business, the Company enfers into transactions with its parent company and other affiliated companies. The
names of related parties of the Comparty as required to be disclosed wnder Ind AS 24 is as follows:

Details of related parties:

Key Management Personnel (KMP) as defined under Ind AS Mukesh Luthra, Chairman
Jayant Khosla, Managing Director w.e.f. 10th Jan
2019
Sandeep Ahuja, Executive Director
Narinder Kumar, Group CFO
Natarajan MY (Director for VLCC Personal Care
Ltd, appointed w.e.f. March 16, 2007)

Relative of Key Management Personnel Vandana Luthra, wife of Mukesh Luthra

Details of related party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2019 and outstanding balance as at March 31, 201%:

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018

A. Expenses
Professional Fees
- Vandana Luthra 351 325
B. Balagce cutstanding at the end of the year- at at
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Trade payables
- Vandana Luthra 32 29
Compensation of Key management personnel of the Group
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Short-term employee benefits 591 478
Termination benefits 15 14
Total compensation paid to key management personnel 606 492

Post-empioyment gratuity benefits arc incurred at company level and hence not provided here.
also refer note 34 for employee share based payments.

Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility

Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, requires

that the board of directors of every eligible company, shall ensure that the comnpany spends, in every financial year, at least 2% of the
average net profits of the company made during the three immediately preceding financial years, in pursuance of its Corporate Social

Responsibility Policy. The details of CSR expenditure is as follows:

Year ended Year cnded

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year 9 36
Amount spent during the yearon -

- Denation To Khushi Foundation 23 16

- Donation te Sri Sai Leela Trust - 3

- Amar Jyoti charitable trust - 1

- Others - |

23 21
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31. Business Combinations

On June 19, 2017 VLCC Personal Care Limited, a subsidiary of the Company acquired 77.69% stake in Vanitycube
Mobile Spa And Salon Private Limited (*Vanity") & private Limited company incorporated in India engaged in on-
demand beauty treatments.

Acqisition of 77.69% stake in Vanity is by way of acquisition of 12.5% in equity capital and remaining by way of
subscription of Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares (CCPS) of face value Rs 10 each at INR 180 Lacs.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling interest at proportionate share its net assets.

The details of purchase consideration, fair value of net assets acquired, measurement of NCI and goodwill for the year
ended 31st March 2018 are as follows:

A Fair value of purchase consideration transferred INR Lakhs
Equity investments purchased from shareholders 115
CCPS invested in company on June 2017 130

Amount invested at acquisition (A) 295

B Fair value of assets acquired and Babilities assumed
Assets acquired

Property, plant and equipment 5
Intangible assets 9
Trade receivables 0
Cash and cash equivalents 278
Other current assets ¢
Total assets acquired 292
Liabilities assumed
Trade payables 5
Other financial liabilities 3
Other Current Liabilities 5
13
Net assets acquired 279
C ‘Non-controlling interest measured at proportionate share of net assets 62
D  Goodwill on acquisition 79
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32. Gratuity and other post-emplayment benefit plans
a} Defined contrlbution plans
The Group makes contribution towards employees’ provident fund, and employees’ state i plan sch Under the sch the Company is
required to contribute a specified percentage of payrall cost, as specified in the rules of the schemes, to these defined contribution schemes, The Company
has recognized during the year as expense towards contribution to these plans as below:

year ended March  year ended

31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Provident fund 642 557
Employees® state insurance scheme 185 167
Total 327 724

b) Gratuity scheme
The grawiity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has complated five years of service is entitled to specific

benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age.

This is a funded benefit plan for qualifying employees. The Company makes contributions 10 the VLCC Henlsh Cate Limited Employees Group Gratuity
Scheme("Gratuity Trust”). Palicies are taken by the Gratuity Trust created by Compeny 10 GGVeT the liability of the Company. The scheme provides fora
Turnp sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment. Vesting ocours upon completion of five
years of service.

rch 31,2018 March 31,2018 March 31,2018

March 31, 2019 March 31,2019 March 31, 2019 Ma

Within Inda Within India _ Outside India Within Indie Within India Outside India
Change in benefit obligation Funded  Noa Funded _ Non Funded | Funded Non Fonded Non Funded
Etees_em. value of abligation as at the 545 108 465 460 74 462
ginning of the year
Add: Current service cost 9% i3 106 81 32 34
Add: Past service cost - 0 - 24 2 .
Add: Interest cost 41 8 34 34 5 33
Add: Actuarial (gain) / loss 67 5) 147 24 3 185
Less: Benefits paid (82) (&) (245) 9 1z2) (275)
Diisposal of Subsidiary - - - - - (26)
Currency Translation Reserve - - 29 - - 2
Present value of obligation as 667 130 538 845 105 465
Change in plan assets
Plan assets at the beginning of the year 107 - - . 154 - .
Add: Expected return on plan assets 8 - B 13 - -
Add: Contribution by the Cotnpany 50 - - 25 - -
Less: Benefits paid (82) - - (79) - B
Add: Actuarial gain / {loss) 3) . . m - “
Plan assets at the end of the 80 - . 107 - -
Present value of obligation 667 130 538 545 10% 465
Less: Fair value of plan assets (80} - - (w7 - -
Met assets/(liability} 587 130 538 439 108 465
Liability/ (Asset} recognized in the 487 130 538 439 108 465
financial statements
Current 92 1% 130 70 13 77
Nor-current 495 m 408 368 o2 188
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The following tables summarise the componests of net beneflt expense reco

gnised in the Statement of profit or Joss and the funded status and

amounts recognised in the balance sheet:
March 31,2019 March 31, 2019 March 31,2019 [March 31, 2618 March 31, 2018 March 31,2018
Within India__ Withn India__ Outside Tndia | Within India Within India Qutside India
Funded  Non Funded  Non Fynded Funded Non Funded Nen Funded
Net defined benefit cost/(Income) included in
Statemsent of profit & logs at period end
Add: Current service cost 96 33 106 8l 32 84
Add: Past service cost - 0 - 24 2 -
Add; Interest cost 33 7 34 21 5 33
Net cost 119 40 141 126 39 117
Re-measurement gnins/(losses) on March 31, 2019 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2019 [Mareh 31, 2018 March 31,2018 Mareh 31,2018
defined benefit plans recognised in Within Indin__ Within India _Outside India | Within India Within India Outside India
Other Comprehensive Income Funded NonFunded Non Funded Funded Non Funded Non Funded
Effect of chenge in financial assumptions 10 0 10 - - -
Effect of experience
adjustments 57 ©) 137 24 3 186
Retum on plan assets (excluding Interest) 3 - - 7 - -
Tota} remeasurements
70 (6) 147 33 3 186

recognised in OCI (gain)/loss

Economic assumptions
Discount rate
Rate of increase in compensation levels

Expected rate of retum on plan assets
Demographic assumptions

Retirement age (years)

Mortality rate

Employee turnover / attrition rate - alt Ages

March 31, 2019_ March 31, 2018

7.19%
4% to 5%
8.5%

G0 yeaws

147%
4% to 5%
8.5%

60 years

TALM [2006 — 20085L.M [2006 — 2001
15%

Composition of the plan assets Is as followss

Bond fund
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant

Defined Benefit Obligation —
Discount Rate +1%

Defined Benefit Obligation —
Discount Rate -1%

Defined Benefit Obligation —
Salary Escalation Rate +1%
Defined Benefit Obligation —
Salary Escalation Rate 1%

The expected benefit payments In future years is as follows:

Next | Year
Next 2-5 Years
Next 5-1¢ Years

‘The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 3.29 ye

15%

§00% 100%
tion as at March 31, 2019 is as shown below:
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2019 [March 31,2018 March 51,2018 March 31, 2018
Within India__ Within Indin__Outside dia | Within India Within India Outside India
__Funded Non Funded  Non Funded Funded Non Funded Nen Funded
(38) @) (36} (30) (6) (76}
40 g 41 33 6 88
40 9 42 33 [ 0
@n ® (38) @1 (6} (76}
March 31,2019 March 31,2019 March 31, 2019 March 31,2013 March 31,2018 March 31,2018
Within India_ Within India__Outside India Within India Within India QOutside India
Funded  MNon Funded Non Funded Funded Non Funded Non Funded
106 20 128 87 3 n
591 68 404 498 58 292
1,294 116 427 1,233 116 37

ars (March 31, 2018: 5.31 years).
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33, Sepment Reporting

The Group's operations predominantly relates to providing beauty and slimming services, sale of related products through wellness centres and vocational trainings st
institutes for imparting educational trainings relating 1o beuty, slimming and fitness, Based on the management approach as defined it Ind AS 108, the Chief Operating
Decision maker {CODM) evaluates the Group's performance and allocates resources based on analysis of various performance indicators periaining so following three

repostable segments:
(i) Slimming & beauty services wherein the Group has the busi of maintaining and ing beauty, slimming, Eitness and heslth centres at various locations;

(i7) Educational vocational training at various institutes for imparting education relating 1o beauty and nutrition,
(iif) Product Business where Group has the business of selling its own manufictured products and other products procured from outside.
No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments.

Segment revenve and results

Revenues and expenses directly aitributable to sagmen's are reported under each reportable segment. Expenses which are not directly identifiable to each Teportable
segment have been ellocated on the basis of associated revenues of the segment and manpower sffosis. All other eapenses which are not attributable or allocable to

segments have been disclosed as unallocable expenses.
Segment assets and Liabillties

Assets and liabilities that are directly atiributable or aliocable 1o segments are disclosed under each reportable segment. All other assets and liabilities are disclosed as

unallocable. Fixed assets that are used inierchangeably amongst segiments are not allocated to segments.

Reportable Segments Slimmiog & | Educational Product Oihers Total Slimming & Educational | Product Others Total ]
Beauty Institutiony Sale March 31,2019| Beauty Institutions Sale March 31,2018 *
Services Services
Revenue
Sales 54,246 65,11 24,287 - 35,244 $1,780 5173 26,536 - 83,485
Other income 16 64
Total Revenue 54,246 6,741 24,287 - 85,320 51,780 $,173 26,536 - 83,553
Result
Segment result -Profiti {ioss) (170} g2 | (L8IT) (14) (1,047 (2,081} 521 (488} (o (2,058
Operating Profit/(Loss) (1,047 (2,058
interest & Finance charges {2.916) {2.996)
Other income 16 64
Finance income 172 110
Exceptional items {381) (7
Tax expenses (324) 138
Minority interest 401 404
Net profit after tax {4,019 (4,409)
Other Information
Reportable Segments Slimming & | Edwcational Product | Others Total Slimming & Educational | Product Others Total
Benuty Institutions Sale Mareh 31,2019 Beauty Tunstitutions Sale March 31,2018
Services Services
Segment asseis 32,968 1,588 17,691 467 52,714 34,619 1,831 20,826 431 51,727
Unallocated assels 4562 417
Total Agsety 57,276 62,444
Segment liabilities 24,142 2,287 6,683 21 33,133 23,477 1,637 5,801 20 30,935
Unallocated liabilities 15,82C 18,546
Total Lishilities 48,953 49,581
Capital expenditure (including capital 4,354 5,382
advanees and capital work n progress)
Depreciation
On fixed assets 6,279 6,039
The amount of revenue from external customers broken dovwm by Jocation of the customers is shown in the table below:

March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
India 55,947 55,496
Middle East 3,139 21,053
Asie 5,793 6,688
Rest of the world 365 252
Total Revenue 85244 83489

* Refer note 2.4
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34, Disclosures on Employee share based payments

Employee Stock Option Scheme

In a general meeting held on June 26, 2007, the sharcholders of the company through a speci
option plan which provides for grant of Stock Options to eligible employses of
of the Company. The options are t0 be converted into one equity share at a pre
options granted vest in a graded manner and are to be exercised within a perio
plan, the company has issued 941,706 shares in tranches to the VLCC Employee
various date of issue and the trust is holding the shares on behalf of employees till the

the Company and i
determined price determined at
d of 6 years from the date of vesting.
Welfare Trust at fair market value determined on
period the granted options are exercised by the

al resolution approved an employee stock
ts subsidiaries to acquire equity shares
the time of the grant. The

Under the approved

employees in accordance with the plan. Out of these, 450,193 Options have been exercised by 12 employecs on 4.05.2015.

The ESOP plan 2007 was replaced/substituted with the approval of shareholders at general meeting held on Janvary 12, 2016, with a new

plan called "VLCC Employee Stock Option Plan 2015 and all the outstanding and not granted, 1
VLCC Employee Stock Option Plan 2007 as on December 11,2013 had been transferred to the new

Plan 2007 stznds cancelled and be absorbed in VLCC ESOP Plan 2015. The Plan got

Jan 2019 with respect to options to be granted to Managing Director. The Company granted 376,

Jan 19 which will be vested after 3 years from grant date subject to achievement of certain pro

committee.

Employee stock options details as on the balance sheet date are as follows:

modifed by

psed options lying under the present
Plan and accordingly existing ESOP
Shareholders vide its meeting on 10th
680 options to Managing director on 10
fitability as approved by compensation

Particulars Duriang the year ended During the year ended
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Options Weighted average Qptions Weighted average
(Numbers) exercise price per (Numbers) exercise price per
option INR option INR

Option outstanding at the beginning of the year 89,571 81 124,204 82
Granted during the year: 376,680 183 - -
Vested during the year: - - - -
Exercised during the year: - - . -
Lapsed/Forfeited during the year: 21,571 47 34,633 87
Options outstanding at the end of the year: 444,630 169 88,571 81
Options available for grant: 46,833 401,942

The weighted average contractual life for the share options outstanding as at March 31, 201 3 was 6 years (March 31, 2018 4 years).

The weighted average fair value of the options granted during the year was INR 183 (M
The range of exercise price for the options outstanding at the end of the year was INR 56

The following tables list the inputs t© the models used for the years ended March 31,2019 and March 31, 2

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Dividend yield (%) 0% NA
Expected volatility {%%) 50% NA
Risk—free inferest rate (%) 7.48% NA
Expected life of share options (years) 6 years NA
Weighted average share price {INR) 11523 NA
Model used Black Scholes NA

arch 31,2018: Nil).
-Rs 192 (March 31, 2018: INR 56 - INR 192).

018 respectively:
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35

ii)

Financial instruments - Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's prineipai financial liabilities comprise trade payables, borrowings, interest accrued, employes related payables and capital creditors.
The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group's aperations and to provide guaranteces 1o support its operations. The Group's
principal financial assets includes security deposits, rade receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

The Graup is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's senior level management oversees the management of these risks and
is supported by team handling treasury function that advises on the appropriate financial risk governance framework.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctnate hecause of changes in market prices. The

objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 208 and March 31, 2017. Sensitivity of the relevant profit or
Joss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market rigks. The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the
canrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilisies.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or funare cash flows of a financiat instrument will Buctuate because of changes in matket interest rates.
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primacily to the Group's long-term debt obligations with floating interest
sates, Group does not have any fixed rate borrowings as at year end.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in intercst rates, being 2 0.50 % increase or decrease in the intercst
rate, with all other variables held constant, the Group's protit before tax is affectod through the impast on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Tnereaseidecrease  Effect on profit

in basig poiats hefore tax
March 31, 2019
INR Borrowings +30 (82)
[NR. Borrowings =50 82
March 31, 2018
INR Borrowings +50 (82)
INR Borrowings -50 92

Foreign currency risk

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the statement of profit or logs and other comprehensive income
and equity, where any transaction references more than one Currency or where assets / liabilities are denominated in a currency other than the
functicnal currency of the respective entities. Considering the countries and economic environment in which the Group operates, its operatioas are
subject to risks arising from fluctuations in exchange Tates in those countries. The risks primasily relate to fluctuations in US Dollar, Singapore
Dollar and Euro against the functional currencies of respective entities.

The Group does not hedge any foreign currency exposure as the amount involved is non material as of now.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities denominated in different currencies are as follows:

31-Mar-12 31-Mar-18

Asat N Financial _ Financial

Financial assets liabilities Financial assets labilities
United States Dollar (USD) 24 343 56 665
Singapore Dollar (SGD) 3 ) 4 -
EURO 1 - . .
Others 1 1 1 1
Total 29 344 61 666
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The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD, $GD and EURO exchange rates, with all other variables
held constant, The impact on the Group's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities including foreign
currency derivatives, The Group's eXposure to foreign currency changes for all other currenciss is not material.

Change in USD  Effect on profit

e £ X
March 31, 2019
US Dollars +5% 16
-5% (16)
Eure +5% [{)]
=5% )
SGD +5% ()]
-5% 0
March 31, 2018
US Dollars +5% 30
-5% (30)
FEuro +3% .
5% .
SGD +5% (0)
5% 0
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer fails to meet jts contractual obligations.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group is nat exposed to any significant credit risk exposure. Significant revenue is collected by the
Group in advance before rendering the services ta the retail customers.

The customer credit risk is managed by the Group's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit
quality of a customer is assessed based on the individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment and outstanding customer
receivables are regularly monitored.

Ind AS reguires an entity to Tecognise in profit or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance
at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised in accordance with Ind AS 109. The Group assesses at each date of statements of
financia} position whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the
12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition, The Company has used o practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables based on a provision matrix, The provision matrix takes into accoumt historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking
information.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables {net} as of the reporting date is as follows:

Less than 6 More than 6 Total
months maonths
Trade Receivables as of March 31, 2018 6,917 151 7,068
Trade Receivables as of March 31, 2019 4,132 G42 5,074

The carrying amount of trade receivables represents the maximuin credit exposure.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associnted with its financial liabilities that are setiled by
delivering cash or another fnancial asset. The Group’s objective is Lo maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of bank overdrafts and bank loans. The Group’s approach to managing Liquidity is to ensure, 83 far as possible, that it will have sufficient
liquidity to meet its lisbilities when they arc due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Group's reputation. The Group tlosely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. 1t mairdaing
adequate sources of financing including loans from banks at an optimised cost. The table below provides the desails regarding contractual maturities

As at As Bt

March 31,2019  March 31, 2018
Less than 1 year
- Borrowings 5,582 5,580
- Trade payables 20,470 19,531
- Other financial liabilities 4,037 5421
Total 30,089 30,532
More than 1 year
- Borrowings 6,822 8,751
- Other financial liabilities 197 121
Total 7,01% 8,872
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36. Capital Management

The Group's policy is to maintain strong capital base 50 as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to
sustain firture development of business. The management monitors the retum on capital and profitability.

The Group seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returs that might be possible with higher levels of borrowing
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. The primary objective of the Group's capital
management is to maxinmise the shareholder value.

Group monitors capital using gearing ratio which is caleulated as underlying net debt divided by total equity plus
underlying net debt. The Group's policy is to keep the gearing ration below 60%. The Group measures underlying net debt
as total liabilities, comprising interest bearing loans and berrowings, excluding any dues 10 subsidiaries or Group
company less cash and cash equivalents, For the purpose of Capital management, total capital includes issued equity
capital, share premium and all other reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Group.

Group's adjusted net debt to equity ratio at March 31,2018 is as follows:
Gearing ratio

As at March 31, As at March 31,

2019 2018
Borrowings (Refer to note 11(a)) 15,820 18,646
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Refer to note Hdy {4.227) (3.681)
Net debt 11,593 14,965
Total Equity 8,323 12,865
Total Equity 8,323 12,865
Total Equity and net debt 19,916 27,830
Gearing ratic (Net Debt/ Total Equity} 58% 54%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March
31,2019 and March 31, 2018.

This space has been left blank intentionally
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Fair values

The management has assessed the fair value of all the financial assets and liabilities including cash and cash equivalents, trade receivable, security
deposits, other financial assets, imvestments, trade payables and other financial Liabilities, approximate their cartying amounts which is &t amortised

oost,
The cartying amounits of other items carried at amortised cost are reasanable approximation of their fair values.

Accordingly, the Company does not have any financial instruments to be classified under three levels of fair value measursment hierarchy in
acoordance with Ind AS 113.

March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

Particulars FVIPL  FVTOCE Amortize FVIPL  FVTOC! "““:n"“”"’;

K N—

LIABILITIES

Non: eyrrent Jipbilities
Finangial iabilities

- Borzowings - - 6,822 - - 8,751

Curreat assets
Financial inbilities

- Borrowings - - 5,582 - - 5,580

Loug term borrowings includes TNR. term loan from fhe bank which are contracted at flosing rates of interast, Teset at shorl intervals. Accordingly, the
carying valug of such long term borrowings epproximate their faic value
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